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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Clayton County Courthouse is located on the bank of the Turkey River, over­ 
looking the town of Elkader and the Keystone Bridge. The first part of this twe- 
story building, 25' by 75', was constructed in 1867-68 on a parcel of land 
130* by 325 T . It has a rock foundation and is finished in red brick. The 
front facade exhibits arched windows and finely dressed capstones. There 
^ere in this first structure two offices on each floor, with two vaults between 
the downstairs offices.

In 1877-78, a 50' by 75* addition was constructed, resulting in the present 
square dimensions of 75' by 75'. The rock for the foundation was from a local 
quarry. The exterior of the new addition is of the same red brick as the 
original structure.- The trim is wood painted white.

On the first floor of the Courthouse, county officer are located on either side 
of a central hall which extends the length of the building, with a double stairs, 
way starting near the front and back doors and rising to the second floor, where 
the length of bannister encloses the stairwell. The original walnut bannisters 
are still in good condition. There is a similar stairway rising from the sec­ 
ond floor to a clock tower. On the second floor are additional offices as well 
as the District Court chambers and legal library. At the time of construction, 
fire-proof vaults, 8' by 16', were built to house the records of the Clerk's 
and Auditor's offices.

The Courthouse is in a simple Italianate style, having a hip roof and bracketed 
cornice. A white, two-stage clock tower, surrounded by an observation platform 
was added in 1896. It is topped by a black arrow weathervane.

In 1931, the interior was "redecorated throughout", and "the courtroom was re­ 
modeled to conform with modern ideas of what a courtroom should be". In 1971 
the brick of the building was cleaned and tuck pointed, and the wood trim given 
a coat of paint. The interior of the building has been kept in good repair. 
Very little change has been made in room arrangements, but the floors have 
been replaced, as well as the double stairway. The original bannisters and 
newel posts were retained. A new front entrance was installed in 1971.

Because it is such an integral part of the Courthouse grounds, we would like 
to include in this form the monument which was erected in 1919 to Civil War 
sailors and soldiers, on the south side of the courthouse. It is a Barre 
Granite structure, 18 1/2 feet long, 8'3" wide and 15' high. Figures of 
an infantry man and a sailor, each 6' high, are on either side. Five oblong 
bronze panels are modeled pictures of battle scenes, and are on either side 
of an upright panel bearing a portrait of Lincoln, beneath which is the text 
of the Gettysburg Address. This monument has figured prominently in Memorial 
Day services since its erection.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

From 1840 to 1860, county politics resulted in no less than seven changes 
in the location of the Claytori' county seat. In the latter year,'^ final 
move put the county seat at Elkader. The courthouse then erected to 
contain the workings of local government has remained in active use for 
over a century, and today serves as a focal point of local heritage.
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Clayton County Courthouse, Elkader, Clayton County, Iowa

Addenda to #7:
1. The original (1867-68) structure was a flat-roofed rectangle, 6 bays (75')
long (south side) and 3 bays (25') wide (east side -- windows are rounded,
with keystones in the caps). The addition on the north side (1877) was carefully
designed to match the original,structure. It was 75' long and 50' wide, thus
creating a 75' square structure.

At that time, the hip roof and cupola were added. The war monument sits in 
front of the south face. In the photo, the 1877 addition begins at the first 
pilaster on the front and extends to the right,

2. We have been unable to discover which of the four builders listed worked 
on which sections. It is very possible that all four worked on both, since 
only 10 years separated the original structure from the addition.

3. The war monument: contract awarded 16 May 1918 to Edmund Prior of Post- 
ville, Iowa (Allamakee County) to erect the memorial. No information available 
as to whether Prior did the statues himself or arranged to have them done by 
someone else.

4. Architectural significance: Simple and attractive adaptation of the Italianate 
style. Details of the courthouse in keeping with this style include wide, bracket­ 
ed eaves, rounded windows with hoodmolds and the square belvedere.

The original (1967-68) structure was relatively undistinguished: a flat-roofed 
boxy building ornamented only by rounded windows on the east face. The 1877 
addition transformed the courthouse into a well-proportioned, attractive building 
which reflected a fairly sophisticated knowledge of prevailing architectural style.


